Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Bewakoof Brands Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Loss), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2024, and total comprehensive loss (comprising of loss and other comprehensive
loss), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
financial statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process. '

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

10.We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

11. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, were audited by
another firm of chartered accountants under the Act who, vide their report dated May 11,
2023, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

13.As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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(b)

(©

GY)

(e)

®

9]

(M)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters
stated in paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
reference is made to our remarks in paragraph 13(b) above on reporting under Section
143(3)(b) and paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Rules.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements — Refer Note 43 to the financial statements

ii. The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2024 under
the applicable law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material
foreseeable losses on long-term contract. The Company did not have any derivative
contracts as at March 31, 2024.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31,
2024.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 49(vii) to the financial staternen/t§)
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(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(Refer Note 49(vii) to the financial statements); and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and that has operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that the audit trail is not
maintained for changes made through specific access at application level and for
direct database changes. Further, during the course of performing our procedures,
we did not notice any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in cases
where the audit trail feature was enabled.

14. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to
the Act.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number : 304026E/E-300009

A
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Kalpesh Bhandari

Partner

Membership Number : 120036

UDIN: 24120036 BKGOJF2796

Mumbai

Date: May 15, 2024
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements
under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Bewakoof Brands Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. Inouropinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number : 304026E/E-300009
\
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Kalpesh Bhandari
Partner
Membership Number: 120036

UDIN: 24120036 BKGOJF2796
Mumbai
Date: May 15, 2024
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the
books of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we report that:

i

ii.

iii.

(a)

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the

(c)

Management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on such verification were not
material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in
Note 3 and Note 5 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right

(e)

of Use assets) and intangible assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on
whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the
amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of
each class of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible
assets does not arise.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been
initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and
therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately
disclosed the details in the financial statements does not arise.

(a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the

(b)

Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical
verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for
each class of inventory.

During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate, from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with such banks and financial
institutions, which are in agreement with the unaudited books of account.

The Company has not made any investments, granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances
in nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the
reporting under clause 3(iii)(a), (iii)(b), (iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.
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iv.

vii. (a)

(b)

viil.

ix. (a)

(b)

(c)

In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the investments made by it. The Company has not
granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under
Sections 185 and 186.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues,
including goods and services tax, employees’ state insurance, provident fund, income tax,
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

The particulars of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2024 which
have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:
Name of the Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where
statute dues (Rs. In crores) | the amount relates | the dispute is
(Financial Year) pending
Income tax Act, | Income Tax 11.55 2021-22 | Commissioner
1961 of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Goods and | Goods and 0.19 2017-18 | Assistant.
Service Tax Act, | Service Tax Commissioner
2017 of State Tax
Goods and | Goods and 0.90 2018-19 | Assistant.
Service Tax Act, | Service Tax Commissioner
2017 of State Tax

There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest to any lender during the year.

On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared
Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

The Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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X.

x1.

Xil.

xiii.

xiv.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed

(e)

®

(a)

by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report
that no funds raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by the
Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiary. The Company did not have any associates or joint ventures
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiary. The Company did not have any associates or joint ventures during the
year.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has made a private placement of shares during the year, in compliance with

(a)

(b)

the requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Act. The funds raised have been used
for the purpose for which funds were raised.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come
across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section
143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly,
the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out

in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and as represented to
us by the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by
the Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi) (c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it,
the reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24
“Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The Company is not mandated to have an internal audit system during the year.
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XV, In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the
provisions of Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during
the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause(xvi)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company,
the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)
has 8 CICs as part of the Group as detailed in note 48 to the financial statements. We have
not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by the management is
accurate and complete.

xvii.  The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 79.47 crores in the financial year and of Rs.
69.28 crores in the immediately preceding financial year.

xvili. There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and no issues, objections
or concerns were raised by the outgoing auditors.

Xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

XX. The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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XXi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has
been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Numher : 304026E/E-300009

Kalpesh Bhandari
Partner
Membership Number : 120036

UDIN: 24120036 BKGOJF2796
Mumbai
Date: May 15, 2024



Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2624
(All amounts In X Crores; unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Partlculars Notes March31,2024  March 31, 2023
ASSETS
i Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 3 6.49 11.00
(b} Investment Property 5 171 174
{c) Right-of-use assets 4(a) 1.51 1.25
{d) Other intangible assets 6 0.12 0.22
{e) Financial assets
(i) Investments 7(a} 0.01 4.63
(ii) Other financial assets 8 0.69 0.75
{f) Deferred tax assets {net) 9 .
{g) Income tax assets (net) 10 140 1.06
{h} Other non-curreit assets 11 53.25 43.4
Total Non-current assets 65.18 64.14
Il Current assets
{a) Inventories 12 59 0 29.57
{b} Flnancial assets
{i) Current investments 7(b} - 0.05
(li) Trade receivables 13 15 49 20.04
{iil) Cash and cash equivalents 14 - 34.37
{iv) Bank balance other Lhan {Il}} above 15 Q.09 4.77
{v) Other financial assets 16 001 0.69
{c) Income tax assets 17 07 .
{d) Other current assets 18 4,40 5.13
Total Current assats ; 79.92 94.62
Total Assets 1530 jaazs
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I Equity
{a) Equity share capital 19 208 0.07
(b} Instruments entirely equity in nature 0 N -
{c) Other equity 21 —— 8 7195
Total Equity . 51.88 72.02

H Non-current liabllities
(a) Financial liabilities

{i) Borrowings 22

(i) Lease liahilities 4(b) 02
{b) Provislons 23 T 1
Total Non-current labilitles U1 ]

It Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 24 3139 34.40
{li) Lease MNabilities A(b) 134 0.48

{iii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smail enterprises 25 5.61 735
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 25 4350 2869
{iv) Other financial lIabilitics 26 3.47 483
(b} Provislons 27 0.41 0.47
(c) Other current liabillties 28 5.97 9.28
Total Current liabllities 92,63 85.90
Total Liabilities 93.22 86.74
Total - Equity and Liabilities _ 1a5.10 15876

* Amount is below rounding off criteria adopted by the Company

Summary of accounting palicles 18

The accompanying nates are an Integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Price Waterh & CocCh dA e For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Bawakoof Braiid] Riwate Limited
|CAl Firm Registration No. 3040265/&300009

A

ESH BHANDARI PRABHKIRANDEEP SINGH SHy A
Partner ‘(Whole-time Director} ominee Dirgltor)
Membership No.: 120036 (DIN: 03579034) (CAN: 10478931)
Place: Mumbai Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date : May 15, 2024 Date : May 15, 2024 L N Date : May 15, 2024



Bewakoaof Brands Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in X Crores; unless atherwise stated}

Year ended Year ended
Partle
e N Mamhay208  marchasozs
| Revenue from operations 29 160.85 147.07
It otherincome 30 131 82.36
Il Total income (1 + 11} 162.16 229.43
IV  Expenses
{a} Costof materials consumed 31 43,54 44,00
(b} Purchase of stock-in-trade 32(a) 56.31 30.96
{c) Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods 32(b) (19.08) 9.44
{d) Employee benefits expense 33 43.41 59.01
{e} Finance costs 34 5.52 880
(f} Depreciation and amortisation expense 35 3.10 4,00
(g} Other expenses 36 126.43 85.57
Total expenses 265.23 241.78
V  {Loss) befare tax {lil - Iv) (103.07) (12.35)
VI Income tax expense
(a) Current tax 37 e
{b} Deferred tax 37 - 0.39
Total tax expense - 0.39
VIl {Loss) for the year (V - Vi) {103.07) {12.74)
VIl Other comprehenslve loss
items that will nat be reclassified to profit or loss
{3} Re-measurement lasses on defined beneflt plans (0.02) {0.05)
Income tax elfect on above _ - =
Tatal other comprehensive (lass) for the year {0.02) {0.05)
IX Total camprehensive (loss) fer the year (VI + VIII) — {103.09) [IZE
X Earnings per equity share [Nominal value of share X 10] 38
Basle (%) (14,580.19) {1,876.14)
Diluted (%) {14,580.19) (1,876.14)
Summary of accounting policies 18

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the flnanclal statements.

As per our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Flcm Registration No, 304026E/E-300009

l

KALPESH BHANDARI
Partner

Membership No.: 120036
Place: Mumbai

Date : May 15, 2024

For and on behall of the Board of Diractors of

Bewakoof Brands Privata Limited

PRABHKIRANDEEP SINGH
{Whole-time Director}
(DIN: 03579034)

Place: Bengaluru

Date : May 15, 2024

Tonkpee Directbi)
(DIN: 10478931)
Place: Bengaluru
Date : May 15, 2024



Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in T Crores; unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Cash flows from operating activitles
(Loss) bafore tax
AdJustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Interest income

Finance costs

Net Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipment
Fair value galn on financial Instruments at FYTPL

Employee share-based payment expense

Net gain on sale of current Investments

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

Provision for bad and doubtful advances/receivables
Liabilities no longer required wrltten back

Qperating {loss) before working capltal changes
Changes in working capital:

(Increase} In trade receivables

{Increase) in inventories

{increase) In other assets

{Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets
{Increase)/ decrease in other financial liabillties
Increase in trade payables

(Decrease) in provisions

{Decrease) in other liabilitles

Cash used in operations
Income taxes paid {net of refund}
Net cash flows used In operating activitles

Cash flows from investing actlvities

Payment towards purchase of property, plant and equipment and inlangible assets
Payment towards Purchase of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and egquipment

(Investment)/Proceeds in/{from} bank deposits (net}

Interest received

Net cash flows generated from /{used in) Investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares and instruments enlirely equily in nature {including securitles premium)
Proceeds frum non-current borrowings

fAlepayment of non-current borrowings

Repay of lease liabilities {principal and interest)

Repayment of current borrowings {net)
Interest paid

(103.07) (12.35)
3.10 4.00
{0.20) (0.28)
552 8.80
266 .
. (81.91)
3.56 17.08
(0.14) -
13.28 (2.49)
3.67 .
(0.81) .
(72.43) (67.15)
(8.73) {5.70)
{29.63) 15.27
(12.70) (3.92)
0.80 14.63
(1.43) 279
13,90 {10.73)
(0.12) (1.26)
(2.30) 4.27
(112,64) (51.80)
(1.07) (0.54)
(123.72) (52.34)
{0.37) (0.35)
481
0.49
4.68 (0.10)
0.22 0.29
9.83 {0.16)
79.39 94.58
. (8.59)
{0.03) -
(1.53) (0.91)
(3.01) .

{5.30} {8 65)

Net cash flows generated from financing actlvities 69.52 76.43
Net Increase/(decrease) In cash and cash equivalents T {34.37) 23.;3-_
Cash and cash equlvalents at the beginning of the year 34.37 1044
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year o 34.37
Components of Cash and tash equivalents

Balances with banks - an current accounts . 34.37
Cash an hand : . =
Total Cash and cash equlvalents - 34.37

For non-cash i and | Ing activiti
1.63

Acquisitlon of Right-of-use assets

* Amount Is below rounding off criterla adapted by the Company

The cashfiow statement have been prepared under the indirect method as set out In Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS 7) Statement of Cashflows

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 3040265/E-30‘0009

\

KALPESH BHANDARI

Partner

{Whale-time Director}

Membership No.: 120036 {DIN: 03579034)

Place: Mumbai

Place: Bengaluru

Date : May 15, 2024 Date : May 15, 2024

PRABHKIRANDEEP SINGH

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Bewakoof Brands Private Limited

HANT 5 MA
(Npminee Qfoctor)

(DIN: 104¥2931)
Place: Bengaluru
Date : May 15, 2024



Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Statement of Changes In Equity for tha year ended March 31, 2024
(Ail amounts in % Crores; unless otherwise stated)

a, Equity share capltal

Particulars No. of shares % inergrey
Equity shares of % 10 each Issued, subscribed and pald up
Balance as at April 1, 2022 30,633 0.03
Add; Increase during the year 9,820 0.01
Add: increata during the year in lie of conversion of CCPS . 37458 0.03
Balance as at March 31, 2023 67.309 0.07
e o
Add Ingrease duting the year 401 0L
Balance as at March 31, 2024 76,400 0.08
Particulars No. of shares ®incroras
b, Instrument entirely In the nature of equity
As at Aprll 01, 2022 29,19,171 292
Add: Increase during the year 1,010 0.01
Less: Reclassifled to ilability during the yeal 1,010 .01
Add: Reclassified as Equity during the year 6,31,37,336 63,31
Less: Convartad to Equity shaces of Rs 10 each fully paid up 6,50,56,507 8633
As at 31 March 2023 . .
Add: Inereace during the year 490 2
As at 31 March 2029 a450 =
———
* Amount is below rounding off criteria adapted by the company
& Other equit
Employee Share
options d equity Other Total other

P K

artlcutars Retained earnings outstanding contribution® Income equity
== - - ST _account
As at April 1, 2022 {87.13) 594 033 (54.50) {0.03) {135 39)
{Lees] for the year {12.74) . . - (0.05) {12.79)
Employee stock option reserve reversal on cancellation of ESOP Scheme 23,02 (23.02) - .
beemus Shareholders Cantributron transferred 033 . {0.33) -
R itlon of Employee share-based payment expense . 17.08 . 17.08
Premium received on issue of equity shares 94.56 94.56
Premlum towards CCPS on dlassification from equlty to liability {782) (7.82)
Premium towards CCPS on re-clagsificstinn from lisbility to equity 11631 - 11631
As at Morch 31, 2023 1765, - 148.55 (0.08)] 71.95 |
{Loss) for Lhe year {10307 - . B (0.02) (103 09}
Recagnition of Employee share-based payment expense 156 - - 356
Premium received on jssue of equily shares . 75.05 75.05
Premium recewved on issue of CCPS 433 433
|As 3t March 31, 2024 _aza.59 356 . 221,93
The accompanying nales are an Integral part of the financlal statements.

-

As per our report of even date

For Prica Waterhouse & Co Charterad Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Flrm Registration Na 304026E‘E-300009

BHANDARI
Partner
Membershlp No.: 120036
Place: Mumbal
Date : May 15, 2024

/

PRABHKIRANDEEP SINGH
{Whole-time Director}
(DIN: 03579034)
Place: Bengaluru

Date : May 15, 2024

o

MA
{Bichnly ector)
(DIN: 10478931)
Place: Bengaluru
Date : May 15, 2024



Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1A. Background and Basis of Preparation

Background

Bewakoof Brands Private Limited {‘the Company’) is a Company incorporated in India on August 16, 2011, and deals in
Apparel and lifestyle accessories. Registered office of the Company is situated at Thane.

On February 15, 2023, Aditya Birla Digital Fashion Ventures Limited (“ABDFVL”) acquired a controlling stake in Bewakoof
Brands Private Limited (“BBPL”). ABDFVL is a wholly owned subsidiary of Aditya Birla Fashion & Retail Limited (“ABFRL”).

The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 15, 2024

Basis of Preparation

Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), read with Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Iif of the Act and other relevant

provisions of the Act as applicable.

The financial statement has been prepared on the assumption that the Company is the going concern and will continue its
operations for the foreseeable future. The assessment of meeting the obligations in foreseeable future is based on its
business plans and also the intention to issue additional capital during the financial year 2024-25.

(i) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention, except the following
assets and liabilities, which have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:

° Certain financial assets and liabilities.
° Defined employee benefit plans; and
° Share-based payment.

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated March 31, 2023, notified the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which amended certain accounting standards (see below), and are effective April 1,

2023:

Disclosure of accounting policies amendments to Ind AS 1
* Companies are now required to disclose material accounting policies instead of significant accounting policies.

* Accounting policy information considered together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions of primary users of general-purpose financial statements.

* Accounting policy information that relates to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions need not be disclosed.
Accounting policy information may be material because of the nature of the related transactions, other events or
conditions, even if the amounts are material. However, not all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material.




Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Definition of accounting estimates amendments to Ind AS 8

* The definition of ‘change in account estimate’ has been replaced by the definition of an ‘accounting estimate’. As per the
amendment, accounting estimates are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to measurement

uncertainty.

¢ The amendment states that a company develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting
policy.

¢ As per the amendment, measurement techniques and inputs are used to develop an accounting estimate. Measurement
techniques include estimation technigues and valuation techniques.

Deferred tax related ta assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction amendment to Ind AS 12

The amendment has narrowed the scope of the Initial Recognition Exemption (IRE) for deferred tax liability and asset. As
per the amendment, a deferred tax liability or asset is not required to be recognised from:

a. Initial recognition of goodwill or
b. Initial recognition of an asset or liability arising in a transaction which: °

I.1s not a business combination.
Il. At the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit {tax loss); and
fli. At the time of the transaction, does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. (Emphasis

added to highlight the change)

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequent of
amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the Company's accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory

treatment.
(iv) Functional and Presentation Currency:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee {X) which is the functional currency of the Company. All amounts
are rounded to two decimal places to the nearest Crore, unless otherwise stated. (X 1 Crore is equal to % 10 Million).

(v) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

Held primarily for the purpose of trading.
e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is treated as current when:

e |tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading.

e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.




Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1B.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Summary of Accounting policies
1. Material accounting policy information

The material accounting policies comprise of the following, which have been given above the respective notes.

* Revenue from contract with customers (refer note 29)
*  Property plant and equipment (refer note 3)
¢ Trade receivables (refer note 13)
¢ Inventories (refer note 12}
2. Other Accounting policies

(1) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. =

Amortisation methods and periods

A summary of amortisation policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as below:

J Intangible assets Useful life Amortisation method used
| Amortised on straight-line basis

l Computer software 3 years

() Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company

assess whether:

® The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be
physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a
substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified.

* The Company has the right to abtain substantially all of the econamic benefits from the use of the asset throughout
the period of use; and

* The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has the right when it has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the
decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company has the right to direct
the use of the asset either the Company has the right to operate the asset; or the Company designed the asset in a
way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.




Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Where the Company is the lessee

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date except for short-
term leases which are less than 12 months and leases of low value assets. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any initial direct costs incurred less any lease

incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the

earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. If ownership of the leased asset
transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation
is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined
on the same basis as those of property. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses,
if any, adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise of fixed payments, including in-substance
fixed payments. The lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification arising due to change in the
lease term, change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to

zero.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property, and lease liabilities,
separately in the Balance Sheet.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies

the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(1) Financial instruments
(i) Classification of financial assets at amortised cost
The group classifies its financial assets at amortised cost only if both of the following criteria are met:

» the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
e the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

(ii) Classification of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) comprise equity securities (unlisted) which
are not held for trading, and for which the Company has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise changes




Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

in fair value through OCI rather than profit or loss. These are strategic investments and the Company considers this
classification to be more relevant.

{iii) Classification of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Company classifies the following financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL);

* debt investments (bonds, debentures, and mutual funds) that do not qualify for measurement at either amortised
cost or FVQd(l,

® equity investments that are held for trading, and

* equity investments for which the entity has not elected to recognise fair value gains and losses through OCl, and

* Investments in financial instruments issued by subsidiaries, associate and joint venture, whose contractual terms
are not wholly equity in nature.

(Iv) Income Taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the country where the Company operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company measures its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of
the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the standalone financial statement. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related defer income tax assets is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in subsidiary, where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will not be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are off set where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(v) Investment properties

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction cost and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the company and the cost of the item can




Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(vn)

(vi)

be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an
investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can
be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small."

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pretax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense in

profit or loss.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from a past event, with the resolution of the
contingency dependent on uncertain future events, or a present obligation where no outflow is probable.
Material contingent liabilities are disclosed in standalone financial statements unless the possibility of an
outflow of economic resources is remote, Contingent assets are not recognized in standalone financial
statements unless it is virtually certain that the future event will confirm the asset’s existence and the asset

will be realised.
Employee benefits

(i) Short-term Employee Benefits:

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of 'the year in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected ta be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(i} Defined Contribution Plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions etc. to publicly administered provident and other funds as per local
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense

when they are incurred.

{iii) Post-employment obligations
Defined Benefit Plans
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined gratuity plans is the present value of the

defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related abligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by actuary applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit

and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the year in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained

earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.



Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(v

(X)

{x)

(iv) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

"The liabilities for compensated absences are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
year in which the employees render the related service. An actuarial valuation is obtained at the end of reporting period.
The present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end
of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the appropriate
market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit

or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement
is expected to occur."

(v) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal retirement date,
or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Company recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: {a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b)when the Company recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37 and
involves the payment of terminations benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling
due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments as
calculated by actuary are recognised immediately in the Profit or Loss as past service cost.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit attributable to owners of the Company
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus

elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share
"Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into

account:
- the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares,

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares."

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.
They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective

interest method.
Share-based payments

The fair value of the options granted under the Employee stock option plan is recognized as an employee benefit
expense with a corresponding increase in equity the total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value to the options granted:

{i) Including any market performance conditions
(i) Excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions
(iii) Including impact of any non-vesting conditions

The total expense is recognized over the vesting period, which is the period aver which all the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options

5
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognizes the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity

Where shares are forfeited due to a failure by the employee to satisfy the service conditions, any expenses
previously recognized in relation to such shares are reversed effective from the date of the forfeiture.

1C. Standards issues but not yet effective:
Companies are required to explain if there are any accounting standards which are issued but not yet effective and are

expected to have a material impact on the company. As on the date of release of these illustrative financial statements,
MCA has not issued any standards/ amendments to accounting standards which are effective from April 01, 2024.

3 &
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Notes to the Flnanclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in ® Crores; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 3
PROPEATY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Accounting palicy

Property, plant and equlpment s stated at historlcal cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depredation methods, eutimated uieful lives and residual valus

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a stralght-line basls over the useful life of Lhe asset estimated by the managemenl. Depreciation on additions is provided on a pra rata basls from the month of
installation or acquisition. Depreclation on deletlons/ disposals is provided on a pro rata basis up to the month preceding the manth of del disposals. The believes that these estimated useful lives reflect
fair approximation of the period over which the assels are likely to be used. The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on Its tangible fixad assets:

(3} Assets where useful life same as Schedule 11

|Uselul ife o prescribed by Schedule 1 of
Assets Class of Assets lihe co les Act, 2013
Plant and machinery Plntand equipmant 15 Years
(a) Assets where useful life differ from Schedule Il
Useful life as preseribed by Schedule Il of ~ N
|A1ms Class of Assets the Campanies Act, 2013 Estimated Useful life
Motottycles, seootert and ihar miopeds Vahicés 10 years 5years
Motor buses, motar larries and motor cars ather than .
. N N Vehicles 6 years for motor cars 4 -5years
‘those used in a business of running them on hire
3 yoars Tor end uter devices and 6yoars
Servers, end user devices, such as desktops, laptaps, elc. Computers o ute: REING070 4 years
L for servery
Furniture and fittings and fixtures Furniture 10 years Fyoais
Office equipment/ 5years ayears

Office electrical equipment

Electrical equipment

Useful life of assets different from that prescribed In Schedule Il has been asti by the P, d by technical

tessshald aynots

Uil llhwnnmsollxd by Schedule I of the Comp Agt, 1013
Leate torm or manageinent’s sitimata of wieful ife. whichever is shorter

Leaiehad improveiments atstores = =1==-
Lespehcld smprovementy othier than itdres Penod ol leate o management’s estimate of useful lile, whichever is sharter

Assels

Particulars Plant and Machinery gk Computers LI Office equipment Vehicles Electrical Total
and fixtures

Cost
Asat Aprll 1, 2022 1006 066 028 177 055 014 185 15.36
Addltions 025 - 0.02 0.02 - . 0.06 035
Disgovaty i ’ a - . - . . .
At at March 31, 2023 : 1031 086 o3a 179 0.55 014 193 1571
Additions 013 * o 024
Disgorals 3.16 - 0.01 1.62 0.13 009 0.67 569
As at March 31, 2024 7.18 .66 0.29 0.7 0.46 o.os 135 10.26
Accumuiated Depreclation
Asat April 1, 2022 0.87 0.36 0.05 024 020 0.02 018 192
Depreclation for the year 072 024 0.10 041 019 007 106 279
Dispazaly . s - . - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 1.59 0.60 015 065 039 0.09 1.24 471
Diepreclation lor tho year o 0.02 0.11 .20 0.17 0.09 0.36 1.60
Uripoials 088 oy 0.79 0.1 0.9 067 1.54
As at March 33, 2024 L 0.6 0.25 0.06 o.43 a.04 0.83 an
Net carrying valus as at:

mdu!,.y;u a7z .06 015 114 020 0.05 067 11.00

March 11, 2024 584 0.04 o.04 0.1 0.03 o.01 042 (2]

*Amount is below the rounding off criterla adopled by the Company

This space has been intentionolly left blonk ;
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Notes to the Financlal Statements far the year ended March 31, 2024
[All amounts In ® Crores; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 4
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(a) Company as a lessee

The Company has lease contracls for warehouses and offices used in its operations. The lease term of the lease contracts are for 2 period of 3 years. Generally, the Company is

restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assats.

The Company has applled exemptions as per paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116 with respect to short term leases

(a) Right-of-use assets
Amaunt
Cost
As at Aprll 1, 2022 243
Additiony x
Az at March 31, 2023 43
Additiony 163
As st March 31, 2004 A.06
Accumulated Depreclatlon
As at April 1, 2022 039
Depreciation for the year 0.73
As at March 31, 2023 1.18
Depreciation for Ihe year 137
At 3¢ March 31, 2004 255
Net walue a st
March 31, 2023 135
March 31, 2004 151
Net carrying value
Asat As at
L
Partiesdons tarch 31, 2024 Wareh 31, 3071
Rhght-afanie aansty 151 L2s
Total 1.51 1.25
(b) Lease llabllities
o As at As at
I
pediear March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the ycar 138 14
Additions 157 .
Interest paid on lease liabilities 0.17 015
Payments [1:53) (0.51)
Balance a5 at March 31, 2033 159 138
Current 134 0.8
Hon-turren 0.25 .50
The Campany has entered inlo agreements far taking warehouse and offices on lease basls. The lease lerm is for 3 years.
{c) B /) m Inthe of Prollt and Loss account
March 31, 3024 march 31, 3023
Expense relating to short term leases
Other Expenses
Rent {refer Note - 36) 181 406
Elnane cost
Interest expense on lease llabilities 0.17 015
DPeprociation and smoniation eupenses
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 137 079
NOTE: 5
INVESTMENT PROPERTY
ol Galding ] Amount
Cost
Asat April 1, 2022 1.80
Additlans =
Biposaly >
A 3t March 31, 2023 180
Additiont .
Dizposals -
As st March 31, 2024 1.80
Accumulated Depreclation
As at Aprll 1, 2022 0.03
Depreciation for the year 0.03
Dispoyats .
a3t March 31, 2023 0.06
Dopreciation for the year 003
Bispoaats .
A ot March 31, 2024 009
Net carrying vahu
March 31, 7023 4
March 31, 2024 171
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Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
[Allamounts in X Crores; unless otherwise stated)

{b) Amounts recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss for Investment propertles

Particulars For 31 March 2024 For 31 March 2023

Rental income {inchuded ynder Miscollansenus meame) [lefor Note 9] o0 ool

Repnlrs and Raintenance - athirs (included under Other expenses) (Refer Note 36 a0l o0l
{e) Falr Value of Investment Proparty

The falr value of investment property have been determined by a independent valuer, who Is registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Regislered Valuer and
Valuation} rules 2017, the fair value of the | property is ined using Sales C Method/ Market Survey Method under Market approach. The fair value of

the Investment properly is Rs 1,72 Cr as on March 31, 2024 {March 31, 2023 Rs 1.96 Cr).

NOTE: 6
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

flintangithe At

Cost
Asat Aprit 1, 2022 1,03

Additions

Disposals 8
s a1 March 31, 2023 1.03
Additions .

Bigoish
Ax a1 Mareh 31, 2004 Lu3

Amaunt

Accumulated Amortisation
Asat Aprl) 1, 2022
Amartisation for the year
Duposaly

Aot March 31, 2023 o5
Amortlsation for the year 0.10
Dispezaly -
As ot March 31, 7024 a1

041
0.40

et valie a5 at:
March 31, 2033 . 0.2
o.12

March 11, 2024
This space has been intentionolly feft blank é/
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Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts In & Crores; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 7
investments

7{a) Nan-current Investments

Particulars

Asat Asat
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Investments in subsidiaries: {Carrled at cost)
Unguioted equity instruments

10,000 {31st March, 2023: 10,000 ) fully paid equity shares of ® 10/- each of Next Tree Products Prlvate 0.01 0.01

Limited
Total 0.01 001
Investments (Carrled at fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL))

Unguoted Mutual Funds

5BI Mutual fund - Corporate Band Fund Regular Plan Growth* 4.62

Nil; {(March 31, 2023 3,467,634.26 units|
Tatal - d_ﬁi
Total 001 463
*The above mutual funds units have been held as lien with the bank against borrowings.
7{B) Carrent Investments

As at As at

Particulars

March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Investments {Carrled at FVTPL)
Unquoted Mutual Funds
HDFC Mutual fund - Liguid Direct Growth
Nil; {March 31, 2023: 27.93 units)
Kotak Money Market Fund
NI {March 31, 2023: 98.03 units)
SBI Mutual fund - Liquid Direct Growth
Nil; (March 31, 2023: 0 82 units}
ICICI Mutual fund - Pru Liquid Direct Growth
Nil; {(March 31, 2023: 1.88 unlts)
1CICI Mutual Funds - Money Market Direct Growth
Nil; {March 31, 2023: 4.25 units)

Total

*Amount Is below the rounding off criteria adapted by the Company

NOTE: 8
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Particulars Asat Asat

March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

{Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Security depasits 0.69 0.75
Taotal 0.69 0.75

This space has been intentionally left blank
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year endad March 31, 2024
{All amounts in X Crores; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 9
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

Reflected In the Balance Sheet as follows:

Particulars — —
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax assets {net)
Tatal . -
Deferred tax assets / (llabillties) relates to the foll 8:
Balance Sheet
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax llabllities
Net gain on fair value of investments B 0.14
Right-of-usc assets 038 0.35
Right to return assets 0.39 -
0.77 0.49
Deferred Tax assets
Lease liabilities 0.40 0.38
Expenses an which TDS has not been deducted under section 40{a){ia) - 011
Employee share-based payment expense 0.90 .
Loss as per income tax computations avallable for offsetting agalnst future taxable income 37.78 23.00
Loss allowance 4.27 0.49
Expenses allowed for tax purposes when paid 0.39 0.22
Provision for refund liahilities 1.03
Provision for Inventary 231 -
Unwinding of interest on security deposits 0.01 0.01
Praperty, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets 0.94 048
48,03 24.69
47.26 24.20
Less: Deferred tax not recognised {Refer note {i} below) {47.26) (24.20)
Net Deferred tax Assets - 3
Note (i)
Deferred tax assets has been recoined to the extent of deferred tax liabilitles and no further deferred tax has been recognised
Reconciliation of deferred tax assers
As at As at
P I
s March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax income/ (expense) recognised in profit and loss during the year : (0.39)
Deferred tax income/ (expense) recognised in OCI during the year *
Total - 039
NOTE: 10
INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)
Particul Asat As at
artlculars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Advance tax and TDS [net of provision Rs. 0.42 Cr (March 31, 2023 Rs. 0.42 cnl 1.40 106
Total 1.40 1.06
NOTE: 11
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
particul As at As at
articulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
_G5T Input recejvable 53.25 43.49
Total 53.25 43.48
e

This space has been intentionally left blonk
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NOTE: 12
INVENTORIES

Accounting policy
tnventories of raw materlals, stock in tade, yores and spares, wark-in-progress, and finished goods are stated at ¢ost of nét realisablle value, whichewer i lawer. Cost ol raw matenisly, stores aid 1pares sod slock

In trad costof h Coxt ol wark-in-progress and finlihed goads comprizet direct materialt, direct labour 3nd an aparepriste progartion af vailslile and lived averbiead sxpendituse, the latter
treing allocated on the Lk of normal eperating capacity. Cost of inventones abio include 0 ather cotts meurred in bringing the inventories to thair present location And cond Casts af lary are
determined after deducting rehiates and discounts. Cost formula used is "Weighted Average cost'. Stow-moving, naniming and defective inventories arc identlfied and wherever necessary, prowision is made far
such inventaries considaring vanous factors such as likely usage, ete. Met reallable value is the estis selling price in the ordlinary course of businass loss the estimated costs of completion and the
eslimated costs necessary to make the sale,
Asat
icul
— March 31, 2023

—aitn 3, S Marchd), 2023
Raw materials 17.00 644
Work-In-progress 014 0.76
Finished goods 2657 10,55
Stock-in-trade 14.50 1136
Stores and spares 001 "
Packing materials 098 046
Total 59.20 29.57

“Amount is below the raunding off eriteria adopted by the company

Vrite-down of inventories are accounted, considerling the nature of inventory, againg, llquidation plan and net realisable value, Write-down of Inventories amounted to Rs.1.14 Cr for the year ended 31st March,
2024 {March 31, 2023 : Rs.1.15 Cr}. These write- downs were recognised as expenses and included in 'Cesl ol matcrials consumed’, ‘Changes in inventaries of work-in-progress, stock-n-trade and finished goods' n

the Statement of Prafit and Loss.

NOTE: 13
TRADE AECEIVABLES

Accounting policy

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers far Roods sold or services performed in the ordinary couise of business and refiect the Company’s unconditional right to consideration {that is, payment is due
only on the passage of time).

Trade recevables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do net contain slgnficant tinancing components. The Cempany holds the trade receivab!,
cdsh flows and t) {/ them sub: ly at amartised rost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance

For trade receivables and cantract assets, the Company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 103, which requires cspected lifetime fosses 1o be recognised from iniiial recopnition of the recavables

o5 with the objective of collecting the contractual

Partizula ot .
e March 31,2034 March 31,2023
Related partles (refer Note 44) 6.93 496
Qthers 23.61 16.85
30.54 21.81
Less: Loss allowance (15.05) {1,77]
Tatal 15.49 20.04
Breakup of securlly detalis
Particulars As at 00-Jan-00
March 31, 2034
Unsecured, considered good 15.49 2004
Unsecured, considered doubtful 1508 177
30.54 21,81
Less: Loss allawance {15 05} (1.77)
Total 15.39 20,04
Iig of Trade Aecelvables:
&5 an March 31.2024 {for following periods fram due date of
Particulars Not due ——
0 -6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
[i} Undisputed Trade Receivalsles - considerad good . 14.70 0.79 . - - 15.49
(i} Undi: Trade Rece . doubtful . . 6,43 862 . - 15.05
Frovivon on Teads Recelvables . . {6.43) (8.62) - 3 {15.05)
Total = 14.70 0.79 - . - 1549

Outstanding v on March 3L2023 {for following petlads from due date of paymen!

Not due
0 - 5 manths § months - 1 year 1-2 years Tatal
[ Undisputud Trade Reewivables — considered good 895 1100 0.03 0.05 20.04
[if} Undisputed Trade Receivables - considerad doubtful 160 1.77
Iv) Provision en Trade Keceivalides - {1.60} - - 11.77)
B85 11.00 0.03 005 20.04
There are no disputed trade receivables
NOTE: 14
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Asat As at
P
articulars arch 31, 202 March 31, 2073
Cash on hand ! *
Balances with banks
—Current accounts 34.37
Total X 24.37

* Amount is belew rounding off criteria adopted by the Campany
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142: Net Debt Reconcillation
This sectlon sets aut an analysls of net debt and the movements In net debts for each
Particulars A3t Asat
March 31, 2024 March 33, 2023
Caih £ Cash Equivalenty * 34.37
Lease liabillties {1.59) 138)
Non Current horrowings - {003}
Curtent bostowings (inchuding current maturk fong term borrawing)* {3L5E] (2453}
et Debt 3.5 (156,
*This includes interest accrued but not due on barrowings.
| -Othor current assets | Liabilities from financing petivivies ___ |
Current borrawings
Particulars Cash and cash Non-current {including current Total
Lease liabllitles 1
equivalents barrowings maturlties of fong
term horrow|
Net Debt as at April 1, 2022 10.44| (2.14)] (189.11] {41.22) 222.03)|
Cash tlowss 2393 076 . - 24 69|
Repayment / {proceeds) of current borrowings - - . 672 672,
Repayment/{proceeds} of non-current borrowlings . - {5.98) - (5.98)
Interest expense . 015 . 643 6 58|
Interest paid - -0.15] . -6.45| (6.60)
{Acquisiion) / dispesals - - . - .
Reclivied ta aquity - 185,06 185
Net Dbt as at 31 March 2023 3.3 [FELT [0.0: [34.52]) {1.56)
Cash llows {34.37) 1.36) {33.02
Repayment / {proceeds) of current borrowings - - -0.47] {0.47]
Repayment af non-current borrowlngs - - 003 348 351
Interest expense - 017 - 340 3.57]
Interest pald . (017 - -3.45/ (3.62)}
s s . . .
{Aequisition) / dageah (157} - . 157)
et Debst ac ar 33 March 2024 & 11.59]; * [31.56)) {33.15))
* Amount is below rounding off criterla adopted by the Company
NOTE: 15
EANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As at Asat
fan Msieh 31,2028 March 31,2023
Balance with banks
—Ceposlit accounts .62
~Margin inoney depasit accounts* 0.09 115
Tatal 0.09 377
* RankBalance ather than Cash and cash cipuvalaats are Hekd 24 henwith bank wpanit Dorroadngs
NOTE: 16
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
T Partlculars Asat st
March 31, 2024 Harch 31, 2023
{Uinsecured considerad good, unless otherwise dsted)

Advance to employees 0.66
Interest accrued on deposits 001 0.03
ol (X 085,

NOTE: 17
INCOME TAX ASSETS
Asat Asat
Particulars March31, 2028 March 31,2023
Advance tax and TDS 0.73
Total 073 -
i
NOTE: 18
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Asat As at
Pa
rtlculars 3038 Mareh 3L, 3
{Uniegured conyidared good, unless otherwise stated)
Prepayments 074 0.47
Advance to suppliers [Nt of provision of Rs. 5.39 er (March 31, 2023 Rs. 5 39 cn)] 195 354
Right to return assets 1,54 1.00
Other receivables 0.17 0.12
Total 440 513

This space hos been intentionally left blank
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NOTE; 19
GUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Austbmrie tase gaghtal
— Partieubiss — Wi af shares
Fquity haves of €10 s3en
As at April 1, 2022 40000 0.09
Increate during the year 37,276 0.04
BsatMarch il rean 71,37 a0
AL Brlaribie siion of maurved Prelrener snthanngd capitsle SELES D55 2§57
ety Beetassified into Peat (575,00 ;
ALi March 11, 303 £61,45,407 535
* Aenauet it Birlow tinnseg olf e/ e 333580 by the Company
i e i X feceriir ah i 1 bits 4 inta authseksed Eq capital of Rs, 10 each.

**0uring tha year authorized aquity sharz capital was reciassified to the tune of 525 shares of Rs 10 each inte autharized preference share eapital of equivalent amaunt
Issuad, Subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital

Partivulary o Mo vl harey Amant
Equily shares of X 10 each
A3 at April 1, 2022 30,631 0.03
Tisued dunng the year 2810 0.01
bibrd ua Mo ef womuiiien of C0F% IrASH ()
Ax a1 March 33, 2033 897
Aisued dueing the yvae® — T8
s 4t Manch 13, 3004 ooa

*During the year ended 31 March 1024, the company has 1ssued 5,660 enuily share each hiving naminal price of INR 19 per share and issue price of INR 59,340 per share and 2,831 equity share baving nominal grice of
INR 10 per share and Issue price of INA 88,337 under privale pracement,

" 4 oy Prmsis

Particulars “:‘:x::’:m % Changa during the
Rrameter name Mo.ofbhaces | ol totat shared. bl
Ay YA Va1 Lwits wa [ TRy 165%
(Tetal [

T anhtd by prametens | o ]

I. Partlcularg 3t MarEh. ( % Change during the
Primct ol ren = = ——— - B T T LT
{2 b Mok Dngiesd Tatiey Ve fuarss | eutiad A
it —— ETATTH ST

() Terms/rights attached ta equity shares.

The Campany has ané class of equity shares haan face value of s, 10 per share. Each shaiehnlder Is eligible for one vote per share held The dvidend praposed by Ihe Baard of Direclors 1 subject 1o the approval of
the sharehclders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except ln case of Interlm dividend In the event of iquidation, the cquity sharehalders are eligible [o recelve such an amount of assets of the Company ater
distributian of all amounts as per pravisions of the Companies Act, 2013

(v} Detalls of sharcholders hokiing more than 5% sharcs in tho Company

Neme of the shareholder
% of paid-up
Prathbieantees Nach 208, 1o
Afrea i O 2ol Fathiee Vernpres i) g Mo
5,510 58B4%
- oo R VT T T
tame al the tharchober No. of shares % of pald up
i bild thate caglial
Prabhkirandeep Singh 9,182 1352%
Aditya Blrla Digltal Fashion Ventures Umited 57,837 85 17%
67,019 93 69%
vl Datatly ot shares hald by holding company
bt M 31 2000
e o
Hamie of the shis shaidar o i =
Aditya Birla Dletal Fathion Ventures tmlled 66,328 007
Nama of the shareholder e e i
52,837 .06

(V) Shares rasarved for Issue under Employes Stack Option Plan

For et oy of ghares th fegiay Optlon Plan { 5cheme 2023 ) of the Company, refer Nole - 41,

(vl} For detalls of shares reserved far an Bsue on conversion of Cumulative Compulsary Conventible Preference Share, refer Note 20

Iviii} There are no shares allotted for cansideration other than cash durlng the year. There were no banus shares issued during the year
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NOTE- 20
fmutrusiend pitinchy In the naturne of eine

Compubigrity Comvertible Preloranca ihires

1) Aunhorlced share capltal
As al April 01, 2022

0001% Campulsary Convertible Preferance Shares of &s. 15 each
0.001% Comaulsary Canveruble Preferance Shares ol Ry 100 each
Serles B Compulsary Comvartible Preferance Shaies of Rs 10 each

Inetenuy dating the veas

As at March 31, 2023

Decrease during the year

Reclassitication af Preference Share capilal to equity Share capital
0 091% Campulsury Corvertible Preference Shares of As. 15 each
0001% Comaulsary Cerertible Praference Shares of Rs. 100 ach
Serles B Compulsory Caaveitible Preferance Shares of Rs. 10 each

In¢eease dunng tha year

ol
0.10% Cumulalive Compulsary Canvartible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully pald up
A5 al March 31,2024

11 tssued, subscribed and fully paid up shares

As3t0l Aprll 2022
00019% Series Secd Il Compulsory Convartble Preference Shares of Rs. 15 each fully paid-up
0.001% Sencs Al Campuliory Converlible Preference Shares af Rs 100 each fully paidsup
Setiz B Compulsary Cunventible Preterence Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid-up

Incraate durlng the year

00015 Series Ad Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs 100 each fully paid up
Total

Less Reclassifiad (o habllity duriag the year

0.001% Series A4 Compulsory Canvertible Preference Shares of Ry. 100 each fully pald up
Total

Add: Reclassitied a5 Equily durlng, the year

0,001% Series Seed Compulssry Comyertible Preferance Shares of Rs 15 each fully paid-up
0,001% Senes Sced Il Compuliory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs 15 each fully paid-up
0 G5 Serles Seed IIf Compulicry Converhibte Prelerence Shares of R 1 each fully paid up
0 DL Serivs A Compulscry Can.eitible Preference Shares of Rs 160 vach fully paid up
0.001%; Sattes A1 Compulsory Convertlble Preference Shares f Rs 160 each fully paid-up
0001% Series A2 Compulsery Canvertbla Preference Sharas of Rs. 100 each fully paid up
063N Senes A3 Cempulsory Canvertible Preference Shares cf Rs 100 2ach partiy pad up t s 5 racn
0091 Series A4 Compulsory Convertibile Preforenca Shares of s 100 2ach fully pald up
Setics B Compulsory Canvertibie Preferance Shares of Rs_ 10 each fully paid up

Talal

Less Conerlad to Equity shares of Rs 10 each hully paid up

00014 Seiies Seed Campulsary Convertlhle Preterecce Shares of s 15 exch fully pa d-up
0.091% Serres Ssed ft Comaulsery Convertible Prefecence Shares of R, 15 each fully pald-up
0601% Sanes Seed Il Compuliary Convertible Preference Shares of R 15 cach lully pardup
0Q001% Senes A Campulsary Convertible Preference Shares of s. 100 each fully paid ug
0031 Senes Al Compulsory Conversible Preference Shares of Rs 109 each fully paid-up

0 C01% Series A2 Compulsory Convertible Prefererice Shares of Rs 100 exch fully paid up
00174 Series A3 Comuulsory Convertible Preference Shares 3¢ Rs. 100 each partly paid-up to Rs. § cach
00925 Series A% Compulsory Convertible Praference Shares of Rs 100 each fully vaidoun
Serics B Compulsary Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

As al March 31, 2023

Increase during the year

0.1U% Cumulative Compulsery Canvestible Preference Shares of A1 10 cach fully 0aid-up
Total

As at March 31, 2024

{lii) Terms/rights attachad to CCPS

Murmbers Amaunt
10,000 0.02
277 0.

6,50,20,606 £5.03
6,60,61,36% 6.7
10,000 0.0
13n 22
6,60.29,886 6503
525 -

525 >

1597 -
261 001
19,1723 232
1 illﬂ_\ ant
30,188 FEn
Lo L]
1910171 235
1957 .
1620 .
756 0
4801 oos
L1se o0
8,278 aos
21 -
5810

LiLME)
T

1.957.00

1,620.00 >
2343 00 .
480100 00s
139100 001
227800 00s
42100 2
5,810 00 006
L6313 L e [£11]
- 0.00

A z
ar = .
4% '

The Company has issued Serles Seed I, 11,  Compulsary Convertible Preference Sharas of Rs 15 each lully paid up, Senes A, AL, A2, A4 Compuliory Canvertble Preference Sharzi of . 100 each fully pald up, Series A3
Compulsory Canverube Preference Shares of Rs 100 each partly paid-up Lo Rs 5. €CPS Serles |11, I, A, AL, A2, A3, Ad shares carry a minimumn preferentlal diddend & 0 0013% p a proportionately lor the perod for
which the shares zre befng held and It shall be pald In preterence o any ditdend or distribulion payable upan shares of any oiher ¢lass subect ta the aparczal of sharehalders In the General Mepting

These CCPS Serics |, 0, 1I, A, A, A2, A3, Ad are convertlble into cauily shares, at any time upon the 1equest of the holder of CCPS ar autamahcally at the end of their lenure, which (6 20 years from the date of issue of
each of such CCPS. CCPS are canvertible Into equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 subject 1o adjustments in respeet of Anti dilution, employee stock optian pacl and Liquidation Prefercnce 13 provided In Lhe Sharehaldors.

Agreainent. Al the alorementioned shares hava been tonverted 10 equity during the previous year

The cempany 1:as Iued cumulative cormpulsory Convartible Prefereace Shares of B 10 each fully pad up carry 3 preferenc dw.dend €0 10¥ p a The dividend agalitable 19 the €CPS shall accrue cn a cumulative basis

Anaually Al divided pryab‘e on Ihe CCPS shall be paid on the date of canvers on of CCAS Into equity share of the Company. The Purchaser thall have an ircevocable

L 12 convert Lhe CCPS {along wath the sccrued

dividend) into equity shase of the Campany such that for every 1 CCPS , the ho'der shall be Issue 1 equity share of the Company at the end af thei tenure which is on cr alter June 30, 2629,

| hanes baid by Promatens

Whares ebd by Pramaters

Fartieulan

’L\mmhtmm = Mo, il Skarri E | wear

gl Favhmen Ve ptuers Lmine 4 %0 [T | [
{Tutat 430
[ $hires heid by Promaters | S Chamge duringine
Pramater aume Mo, cf Thares. | T ear
Adizva flvba Bra st Fachon Ventures Lmicd | . |
{Tetal - 3 =

(v} Dewalls of shareholders holding more than 5% shares In the Company

0.10% Cumulative Compuitory Converilble Preference Shares

R T T T T —
Ha. gt shares St gt

Bebitya Miils Del il Frihisn Ventured Umied

430 30060

L 200007

Harme of the tharehalder

Ax 3t March 31, 3023

Mo, of harey % ol paid.ugy

Adizga Wints Dighal Fashion Ventures Uimded

{vl) Dealls of shares held by holding company

0.10% Cumulallve Compulsary Convertible Preference Shares

Marne of i iharaholdes

Aditya Blrla Digatal Faghlon Ventures Limited

Av ot Mrch 31, 3034
No. of shares held Amount
H &

Nama of the thareholdar

Ak b h 31,3000

No_ ot shares held Amount

Aduitya Birla Digital Fathion Ventures Lim,ted

G the soundis off eritens adopled by the company




Reurahoal Drands Pivate Limited
Nates to the finandal statoments for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in X Crores; unless olherwise stated)

NOTE: 21
OTHER EQUITY
A Aray
Musch 1, 3034 MacchdL 300
Petiioed Lhemiih (179.59) (76 52)
Secuitien Marssm 2791 JETE Y
Employee Share options outstanding acconnt 156
cimprehenibve § 1016) [L10)
Tatal 5180 nm
Asat Ar
March 11, 3074 Match 11, 30230
Matsined earriags
Openeg '2iee 7652) (87.13)
Tttt} dir the yes (103.0%) t12.74)
Ema'zyes itneh maticn roverst 000 a0
Deemed Shareholders Contritutlon 0.00 033
Closing Batance [TEXT] {7657
Securitles Premium
Opening Batance 14855 {5450)
Received durng the year 7938 9456
Las: Premium pald tawards CCPS on classilication from equity 1o llability - (7.82)
Add: Premium pald 1owards CCPS an reclassification from kalility 1o equlry and subsequent converston - 116 4y
Cloxing Balanca 117 [
Employea Share options outstanding accaunt
Opaning Balance - S94
Add. Employee share-based payment expense {refer note - 41) (L) 17.08
Less: Transferred ta retained eamings on carcellation of the ESQP scheme o
Closing Ralance L
Other comprehensive Income
Remeasurement gains/ {losses) an delined benelil plans
Opraing Balance 003 (003}
Gainf {iosses) during the year {0.02) (0.05)
fa18) o0,

Closing Balance
The descriplion of the nature and purpase of each reserve within other equily Is a follows:
*Amount is below Lhe rounding alf criteria adopted by the company

1. Aetalned Earnings
Retalned earnings compnse af the Company’s accumulated undistribuled orafis/ Iosses) after 1acer

2.Securities premiums
Securittes premilum account has been created consequent to Iksue of shares at pramium The reserve can ba Llilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

3. Emplayes Share apllons outstanding account
The fair value of the equily settled share based payment transactions with emplayaes is recognised in Statement ol Profil and Loss wilh corresponding credit to employee stock options culstanding account The
amaunt of cost recognlsed Is transterred ta share premtum on exercise of the related steck aptions

4. Other & galnflloss} : on dafina beneflt plans
The cumulative batances of galns/ {losses) arising an remeasurements of defined beneht plan
gaing/ flosses) reserve will not be rec'assified subsequently to Statement of Protil and Lass

accumulated and recognlsed within this camponent of other comprehensive Income. Items included in remeasurement

Thit space has beea intentianally left blank
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Bewakool Brands Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in ® Crores; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 22
NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

Particulars el oLl
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

Secured

From banks

Vehicle Loan - 0.03
From NBFC

Term Loan - -

Total

Nature of Security and Terms of repayment for Non current secured borrowing

Vehicle Loan from a Bank, balance outstanding Rs. NIL {March 31, 2023: Rs, 0.03 Cr) Repaid in October 2023. Rate of interest as at

date of repayment 9.40% (March 31, 2023:
9.40%

Repaid in December 2023. Rate of Interest as
at date of repayment 14,00 % p.a (March 31,
2023 : 14.00%)

Term Loan from a NBFC, balance outstanding Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1.87 Cr)

Instalments falling due within one year in respect of the above loans aggregating to Rs, Nil {(March 31, 2023; Rs. 1.87 Cr) have been disclosed under "Current maturities of non current

borrowings', Refer Note 24

NOTE: 23
PROVISIONS
As at Asat
I
Remiculars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Employee benefit obligation

Provision for gratuity {Refer Note - 40) 0.28 0.31
Total 0.2_3 0.31

This space has been Intentionolly left blank




Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
HNates to the fInanclaf statemnents for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in X Crores; unless olherwise stated)

NOTE: 24
CURRRENT BORROWINGS

Partlculars

Asat Asat

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Secured
From banks
Working capltal loans 20.89 161
Current maturltles of non current barrowings - 187
From NBFC
Working capital loans 25.00
Debentures 4.39
Unsecured
From NBFC
Working capital loans 10.50 093
Total 3139 3430

24 A : Nature of Sacurlty and Terms of repayment for current secured borrowing

From banks
Working Capital Laan from a Bank, balance outstanding Rs 15.89 Cr
(March 31, 2023: Rs Nif )

Working Capital Loan from a Bank, balance outstanding Rs 5.00 Cr
{March 31, 2023: Rs NIl

Working Capital Term Loan from a Bank, balance outstanding Rs il
{March 2023, 31: Rs 0.87 Cr)
Working Capital Term Loan from a Bank, balance avtstanding As NIl
(March 31, 2023: Rs. 0.74 Cr)

Fram NBFC

Worling Capital Term Loan from NBFC, balance gutstanding Rs, Nil
(March 31, 2023 Ris, 25 00 Cr)

Debentures

Non convertible debenture of Rs 25,000 each fully paid up, balance outstanding Rs. Nil {March 31,

2023: As. 4.99Cr)

Above Working Capital Term Loan are secured by hypothecallon of current assets of the Company

Repayable on demand. Secured by a first pari-passu charge on all current assets
and movable lixed assets. Rate of interest for Lhe year 8 B5% (As at March 31,
2023 :NA)

Repayable on demand. Secured by a first pari-passu charge an all current assets
and movable fixed assets. Rate of interest for Lhe year 8 75% {As at March 31,
2023 :NA)

Repald in Novernber 2023. Rate of Interest as at the dale of repayment 9.25%
P a{AsatMarch 31, 2023 : 8.10%}

Repald in October 2023, Rate of Interest as at Lhe date of repayment 9.25% pa
(As at March 31, 2023 : 9.25%}

Repaid 1n April 2023, Rate of Interest as at dale of repayment 11 00%
p.2-{March 31, 2023: 11.00%)

Repaid in December 2023. Rate of Interest as at date of repayment 12.00 % pa
(March 31,2023 : 12 00%}

Mr. h p Singh and Mr. Munot had Issued personal guarantees ta one bank and one NBFC In respect of term loans and working capltal loan sanctioned by such banks/NBFC. The

same has now been released.

248 Terms of repayment for shart term unsecured barrowing

Working capital laan from NBFC, balance outslanding Rs 10 50 Cr {March 31, 2023 Rs, Nil)

Laan from a NBFC, halance outstanding Rs NI, (31st March 2023: Rs. 0.04 Cr)

Loan from a NBFC, balance outstanding Rs NI, {31st March 2023: Rs. 0.14 Cr}

Loan from a NBFC, balance outstanding Rs Nil, {31st March 2023: Rs.0.42 cr)

Loan from a NBFC, balance outstanding Rs. Nil, (31st March 2023: Rs 0,33 <)

29 C: Assets Pledged as Securlty

Repayabie on Demand. Rate of interest as at year end 10 003

(As at March 31, 2023 : NA)

Repald In April 2023, Rate of interest as at date of repayment 11.76% {March
31, 2023 : 11.76%) of daily revenue collecton until the repayiment of the
disbursed amount

Repald In Aprll 2023, Rate of Interest as at date of repayment 4.30% (March 31,
2023 : 4.30%) of monthly revenue collection until the repayment of the
disbursed amount.

Repaid in April 2023 Rate of Inlerest as al date of repayment 6.50% (March 31,
2023 : 6.50%) of daily revenue collectton until Lhe repayment of Lhe disbursed
amount

Repayable in April 23 Rate of interest as at date of repaymant 15.00%

(As at March 31, 2023 : 15.00%)

The carrying amaunts of assets pledged as sacurity for current and nor-cutrant borrawings are:

Asat Asat

. March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Floating tharge
Current assets
Inventories 59.20 29.57
Investments 0.05
Trade recejvables 15.49 20,04
Cash and cash equlvalents - 34.37
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 0.09 4.77
Qther financlal assets 0.01 0.69
Other current assets 4.40 513
Fixed charge
Non-Current assets
Property, plant and equipment 644 10.94
Total 8563 10556

"Amaunt is below the rounding off criteria adopted by the company




Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notos to the linanclal statements for tha year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in 2 Crores; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 25
TRADE PAYABLES
Asat Asat
e March 31,2024 March 31. 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSMED} (Refer detalls balow) 561 735
Total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro enlerprises and small enterprises?® 43,50 28.69
Total 45.11 36,08
“includes payables to related parties, For terms and conditions with related paties (Refer Note - 44)
Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006
Asat Asat
oL March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
a. The principal amaunt and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting perlod:
Principal amount due ta Micra and Small Enterprises 353 581
Intereit due an the sbave 116 0.92
b. The amount of interest pald by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006, along wilh Lhe amaunt 0.89 -
of the payment made to the suppller beyond the appainted day during each accounting period
¢. The amaunt of interest due and payable for the periad of detay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) 018 0.63
but without adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
d. The amount of interest accrued and remalning unpaid at the end of each accounting peried 134 1.5%
155 0.62

e. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even In the succeeding periods, until such date when the interest dues as abaove are actvally paid
to the small enterprise for the purpose of disall under Seclion 23 of the Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Development

Act, 2006.

eofa

Agelng of Trade Payables:

ot |____Qutstanding as an March 11,2024 {far following periods from due date of payment)
Parliculars
{including unbilled) Less than 1 year 1-Zyears 2-3years Mare than 3 years Total
178 - 025 0.52 0.10 5.61
3550 322 130 a8.47 ool 4150
- _ 40.28 548 FRT 0.99 011 49.11
Ageing of Trade Payables:
Nat de Outstanding as on March 31,2023 {for following periods fram due date af payment]
Partleulars 5 ey
{indiuding unbilied) | Less than 1 year 1:2yean 23years | More than 3 years Tatal
— 550 121 057 210 002 735
19.18 A0% 052 0.34 022 piag
24,68 9.24 Las .43 0.2 3604
Thet¢ are no disputed trade payables.
NQTE: 26
OTHERS CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Particulars e .
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
interest accrued but nat due on borrowlings 0.16 0.12
Creditors far capital supplles S 013
Employee beneflts payable 3.30 454
Others 0.01 0.04
Total 247 483
NOTE: 27
PROVISIONS
Asat As at
Particul
riculars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Employee benefit obligation
Provislon for compensated absences (Refer Note - 40} 031 0.37
Provislon for graluily (Refer Note - 40) 0.10 0.10
Total M_.L .47
NOTE: 28
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Asat As at
Farticulars March 31,2024 Morch 31, 2022
Advances received fram customers 184 261
Statutory dues 103 462
Refund Nabilltles {Including provision for promotional wallet) 4,10 205
Total 597 9.28




Bewakoof Brands Private Uimited
Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in ® Crores; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 29
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Accounting pollcy

! from with

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goads/ services to customers at an amount that reflects the conslderatian to which the Company expecttal

To recagnize revenues, lhe Company applies the following five-step approach:
Identify the contract with a customer;
Identify the performance abligations in the contract;
Determine the transactlon price;
Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations In the contract; and
Recognise revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenus from sale of products

Revenue from sales of products is measured at the amount of transaction price (et of returns, customer incentives, discounts, variable consideratlon and other similar charges offered by the

Company}) allocated to Lthat performance obligation
Gaods and Service Tax (G5T} 1s not received by the Company in its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it

is excluded from revenue.

Assets and labilities atlsing from right to returm

A refund liability tincluded in ather current iiabilities) is recognised for cxpected sales return In relation to sales made until the end of the reporting peried

Right to return ogsets

A right of return gives an entily a contractual right to recover the goods from a customer {return to return asset), if the customer exercises its option to return the goods and obtain a refund. The
assel is measured at the carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value of the returned goods,

Refund liabilitles

Arcfund llability is the obligation to refund part or all of Lhe consideration received {or recelvabie) from the customer. The Company has therefore recognised refund liabilities in respect of
customer's right to return. The llability is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer, The Company updates its estimate of refund liabilities (and

the correspanding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period,
The Company has presented its right to return assets and refund liabilities under other current assets and other current liabilities, respectively.

Loyalty points programme

The Company aperates a loyalty programme which allows customers to accumulate points on purchases made. The paints give rise to a separate performance obligation as it entitles them for
redemptlon as settlement of future purchase transaction price. Consi ion received is all db the sale of products and the poaints issued, with the cansideration allocated to the points

equal ta their fair value. Fair value of points is determined by applying statlstical techniques based on the historical trends

Conslderatlon allocated to reward points is deferred and recognised when points are redeemed or when the points expire, The amount of revenue is based on the value of points redeemedy expired

| from services

Commission Income

In case of sales of gaods, where the Company is an agent in the transaction, the difference between the revenue and the cost of the goods sold is disclosed as commission income in other operating

Income

Membership Income

Revenue from sale of services in respect of membership fees Is recognised proportionately over the period of the membership fees.

hery (Cash Colleetion Charges and frelght revenua)
Income from services is recognised as they are rendered based on agreements/ arrangements with the concerned parties, and recognised net of goods and services tax/ applicable 1axes.

Particul Year ended Year ended
il March31,202¢  March 31,2023

Revenue with contract with customers
Revenue from sale of goods 151.35 135.48
Revenue from rendering of services
- Commission Income 7.44 8.82
- Membership Income 0.99 0.95
- Cash Collection Charges and ireight revenue 1.06 1.78
Other operating income

Pracess waste sales 0.02 0.04
Total 160.85 147.07




Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes to the fInanclal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts In X Crores; unless otherwise stated)

{a} Right to return assets and refund labllitles:

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 35, 2023
Right to retum assets 1,54 1Loo
Refund liabllities 4.10 2.05
{b) Contract balances:
As at Asat
e March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Contract assets
Trade recelvables 15.49 20.04
Contract liabilities
Advance recelved from customers 184 2,61
{c) Recondlliatlon of revenue as recognised In the Statement of Profit and Lass with the contracted price:
Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue as per contracted price 246.12 176 99
Less:
Sales return 74.47 27.87
Discount 6.70 .
Refund liabillties 4.10 2.05
Revenue as por the Statement of Profit and Loss 160.85 147.07
(d) TimIng of revenue recognition
As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Goods transferred at a point in time 151.37 135,52
Sale of service

Services transfersed over the periad of time (833) {1.00)
Services transferred point in lime 833 1.00
Revenue os per the Statement of Profit and Loss 151.37 135,52

{e} Performance and i per

The remaining performance obiigation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the

Company expects to recognize these amounts In revenue. Applying the practical expediant as glven in Ind AS 115, the Campany has not disclosed the perfi e obli related

disclosures for contracts that have orlginal expected duration of one year or lesser.

NOTE: 30

OTHER INCOME

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Interest income 0.20 0.30

Net gain on sale of current investments 0.14 -

Fair value gain on finsncial instruments at FVTPL - 8191

Liabilities no longer required written back 0.81

Miscellancous inceme 0.16 0.15

Tatal 131 B2.36
LS




Bewakoof Brands Private Limited

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Allamounts in R Crares; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 31
Cost of Material Consumed
Particula Year ended Year ended
i1 March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Raw Materlal .
{nventories at the beginning of the year 6.44 11.06
Add Purchases 57.15 36.15
Less: Inventary at the end of the year 17.00 6.44
46.59 40.77
Packing materlal
Inventories at the beginning of the year 046 0,949
Add Purchases 347 275
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 0.98 0.46
2.95 3.23
49.54 44.00
-5
NOTE: 32
(a) Purchase of stock-In-trade
Partlculars Year ended Year ended
- " March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Purchase of stack-in-trade 56,31 30.96
Taotal 56.31 30.56
S— =i
(b) Changes in inventorles of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods
Inventorles at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress 0.76 3.75
Flnished goods 10.55 1299
Stock-in-trade 11.36 16.08
Right ta Return Asset 100 0.29
23.67 33.11
Less*
Inveatories at the end of the year
Work-in-progress 0.14 0.76
Finished goods 26,57 10.55
Stock-in-trade 14.50 1136
Right to Return Asset 154 100
42.75 23.67
Total (12.08) 9.44
NOTE: 33
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages, bonus etc. 38.20 40.55
Contribution to provident and other funds {refer Note - 40) 0.40 0.51
Employee share-based payment expense (Refor Note - 41) 3,56 17.08
Gratuity expense {Refer Note - 40) 0.13 0.20
Stalf welfare expenses 112 0.67
Tatal 4341 59.01
NOTE: 34
FINANCE COSTS
particut Year ended Year ended
el March31,2024  March 31,2023
Interest expense
--borrowings 3.40 643
--lease liabllities {refer Note - 4b) 017 0.15
~-others 1.61 117
Other borrowing costs 0.34 105
Total 5.52 &.EI;-
NOTE: 35
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
Particul Year ended Year ended
e March31,2024  March 31,2023
Depreclation and Amortisation
--Property, plant and equipment {Refer Note - 3) 1.60 2,78
-~-Right-of-use assets (Refer Note - 4{a) 137 0.79
—Investment Property (Refer Note - 5) 0.03 0.03
~Intangible assets (Refer Note - &) 0.10 0.40
Total ¥ T 4.00
e -




Bewakaof Brands Private Limlted

Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts In R Crores; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 36
OTHER EXPENSES
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rent 181 4.06
Electricity charges 114 102
Repalrs and malntenance

Buildings 0.0 0.05

Plant and machinery .75 0.32

Others 0.01 0.01
Jab work charges 213 121
Cantract labour expenses 6.64 5.92
Advertlsement and sales promotion 46.95 27.96
Transportation and handling charges 3139 25.55
Commissian 5.07 3.64
Royalty expenses 1.53 2.85
Legal and professional expenses 152 2.53
Rates and taxes 0.05 1.08
Payment to audilors (Refer details below) 0.18 0.30
Information technology expenses 5.16 4.65
Net loss on foreign exchange transactions 0.01 0.01
Net Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equlpment 2.66 E
Allowances for bad and doubtful debts 13.28 (2.49)
Provision for bad and doubtful advances/receivables 3.67 4.34
Misceilaneous expenses 247 2.56
Total _ 126,43 85.57
Payment to auditors:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
For Statutory audit fees 017 0.30
For tax audit fees 001 -
Total 0.18 0.30
——ia
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Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes to the flnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in R Crores; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 37
TAX EXPENSE
The major components of tax expense are:

Statement of Profit and Loss;
Profit or loss sectlon

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current tax
Current tax charge -

(A) . -
Deferred tax
Relating to arigination and reversal of temporary differences . 039

(8} v 0.39
Total (A+8) - 039
OCl section
Deferred tax related to items recognlsed In OCI durlng the year

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net {gains)/ losses on re-measurement of defined benefit plans
Total .
Reconclilation of tax expense
N e — Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(Lass) before income tax {103.07) {12.35)
Applicable India's statutory Income tax rate® 25.17% 27.82%
Computed tax {credit) {25.94) (3.44)
Deferred tax not recognised :
--Deferred tax nat recognlsed (2537} 383
--Permanent disallowances {0.57) -
Tax expense reported in the Statement of profit and loss - 0.39

* The Company has opted for new tax regime as per section 115BAA of income Tax Act from the Financial Year 2023-2024 {Assessment Year 2024-2025).

NOTE: 38
EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

The following reflects the profit/(loss) and equlty share data used In the hasic and diluted EPS computations:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Earnings Per Share {EPS) is calculated as under:

{Loss) as per the Statement of Profit and Loss (a) (103.07} {12.74)
Welghted average number of equity shares for calculation of Basic EPS (8) 70,689 67,909
Basic EPS (%) (A/B) (14,580.19) {1,876.14)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 70,689 67,909
{Loss) as per the Statement of Profit and Loss (A) (103.07) (12.74)
Add: Employee Share based payment expense 3.56 -
{Loss}) for computation of Diluted EPS {Q) (99.50} {12.74)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of Dlluted EPS {D) 71,341 67,909
Nominal value of shares () 10.00 10.00
(c/o) {14,580.19) (1,876.14)

Dilluted EPS (X)*

* Stock options granted to the employees under the ESOP scheme are considered as potential equiry shares. The same are not considered in the determination of diluted

¢

earning per share as they are anti-dllutive.
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Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in R Crores; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE -39
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

J i and pti that affect the reported amounts of

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requlres the to make j
revenues, expenses, assets, llabilitles, the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could

result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periads. and plions are revi d on
periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assats and liabilities, within the next financial period, are described belaw. The Company's assumptions and estimates are based on parameters avallable at the time of
s about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or clrcumstances

preparation of financial Existing cir es and
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

(1) Provision on Right to return assets & Refund Liabilitles
The Company provides for discount and sales return based on season wise, brand wise and channel wise trend of previous years. The Company reviews the trend at regular

Intervals to ensure the applicability of the same in the changing scenario, and based on the 's of market conditions.

(i) [ Il for doubtful debts
Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has been determined based an Expected Cred|t Loss (ECL) model. The Company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109,

which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. Additionally, the company carries out a specific partywise assessment of
the trade recelvables and creates loss allowances based on such assessment over and above the expected credit loss if required.

(1) GST accumulation
The Company has accumulated input tax credit due ta input services being taxed at the rate which Is higher than its output liability. The company carries out GST

recoverability assessment based on the future projections taking into account business plans etc.

(v} Provision on Inventories
The Company has defined pollcy for provision on inventory for each of its business by differentiating the inventory into care and non-core {fashion} and subcategorised into

finished goods, stack-in-trade and raw materials, The Company provides provislon based on policy, past experience, current trend and future expectations of these materials
depending on the category of goods

Esti and jud, are continually | d. They are based on histarical experience and other factors including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be r

under the cir e:
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Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2029
{All amounts in R Crores; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE - 40
GRATUNTY AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS

(I} Defined contributlon plans - Provident Fund, ESl and labour welfare fund

The Company makes Provident Fund, Employee State [nsurance Scheme and Welfare Fund contributions which are defined contribution plans, for quallfying employees. Under
the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognised Rs 0.38 Cr {March 31, 2023: Rs 0.50
Cr) for Provident Fund contrlbutions, Rs 0.001 Cr (March 31, 2023: Rs 0.01 Cr) for Employee's State Insurance and Rs 0.001 Cr {March 31, 2023: Rs 0,001 Cr) for Labour Welfare

Fund in the statement of profit and loss.

{ll) Defined henefit plans :
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan {the “Gratuity Plan®) coverlng eligible emplnyees In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity

Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, inc itation or termi of employ . of an amount based on the respective employee’s
salary and the tenure of employment. The Company’s llability is actuarially determined using Projected Unit Credit Methad at the end of each year subject to the celling of Rs. 20
lakhs. The Company's defined benefit plan is funded, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefits plans, to recognise on net

basls,

Gratulty Is a defined benefit plan and company is exposed to the following rigks:

life expectancy risk [The present value of the defined beneflt plan llabillty is calculated by reference to the best estimates of the mortality of plan participants both during and
after their erployment. An increase in life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's lfability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumptlon of salary increase rate of plan pirticipants in future, Deviatlon in the rate of
increase af salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on
the plan's labifity.

The Company has used certain mortallty and attrition assumptians in valuation of the llability. The Campany is exposed to the risk of actual experience
turning out to be worse compared to the assumptions made,

The defined benefit abligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds, If band yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to

Salary escalation
risk

Demographic risk

Interest rate risk
Increase,
Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment af Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended (rom time ta time}. There is a risk of change

in regulations requiring higher gratuity pay-auts,

Regulatory risk

{l) The d through of Profit and Loss and other comprehensive Income:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars

Eratuity-;u;st charged to nrolit- or Ioss‘_

Current service cost 0.10 019

Net Interest expense 0.03 0.01
0.13 0.20

Gratulty cost charged to other comprehensive Income

Due to Change in financial assumptlions - Q.05

Due to experience adjustments 0.02 -0.05

Due to change in demographic assumption - -0.20

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included In Interast income . Q.25
0.02 0.05

—

(1) The amaunts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements In the defined benefit obligation aver the year are as follows:

Changes In the present value of defined benefit obllgation:

- Year ended Year ended

Changes in Present Value of the Obligation March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.46 045

Opening Deflned Benefit Obligation

Transfer inf{out) obligation (003) -
Current Service cost 0.10 019
Interest cost 0.03 003
Actuarial {galn}/loss on account of

Changes in demographic assumptions - (0.20}

Changes in financial assumptions . 0.05

Experience adjustments 002 {0.05)
Benefits pald (0.14) M
Closing Defined Beneflt Obllgation 0.44 0.46
Changes in Falr Value of Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 0.05 0.28
Interest Income . 0.02
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included In interest income b 10.251
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year &0_5 Eﬁ

*Amount is below the rounding off criteria adopted by the Company

Gratuity is funded through investments with an insurance service provider, i.e. Life Insurance Corporation of ndia (LIC). The plan assets under the scheme are administered by
LIC. The investments are primarily in low risk assets,

Not defined benofit (assat)/iiability

Fair Value of Plan Asset {0.05) (0.05)
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 0.44 0.46
0.3_5 0.41
Bifurcation of Net Liability
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current 0.10 0.10
Non-current 0.23 031
0.38 0.41




Beawakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in X Crores; tinless otherwise stated)

(iv) The principal assumptlons used In determining defined benefit abligations (gratulty) for the company’s plans are shown below:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Significant assumptlon
Discount rate 7.2% 7.2%
Salary Growth Rate™ 15.00% 15.00%
Withdrawal Rates 52.00% 52,00%
Others
Normal retirement age 58 years 58 years
Mortality Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives

Mortality Mortality

(2012-14) {2012-14)
* Takes into account inflation,seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.
{v)A itlvity lysis for sig assumptlons are as shown belaw:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 .
Sensitivity Level
Defined benefit oblj on | /d: In
Increase  Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate 0.50% (0.01) b (0.01) 0.01
Salary Growth rate 0.50% . {0.01) 0.01 {0.01}
Withdrawal rate Increase to 110% / decrease 10 90% (0.04) 0.04 {0.05) 003

The sensitivily analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as ILis unlikely that the change in assumptions would accur
In isolation of ane another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
There is na change in the method of valuation for the prior year

* Amount is below rounding aff criteria adopted by Lhe company
{vi) The fallowing represents maturlty profile for the defined benefit plan in future years :

The weighted average duratton of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting year is 1.87 years (March 31, 2023: 1.9 years). The expected maturity analysis of
undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Witlin the next 12 manths 0.14 .19
Between 2 and S years 0.33 0.30
Beyond 5 years 0.05 0.05
Compensated absences

The compensated absences obligations cover the Company’s liability for leave, which is actuarially valued at each year end by applying the assumptions referred in (Iv) above

The entlre amount of provision of Rs, 0.31 Cr is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of any of these abligations,
However, based on past experience, the Company dose not expect ail employees ta avail the full amount of accrued leaves or requlre payment of such leaves within the next 12

months
Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024
0.13

Leave obligation not expected to selile within next 12 months

NOTE - 41
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

Employee Share Optlon Plan (ESOP)
The company provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. The relevant details of the scheme and the grant are as below

“Bewakaof Brands Private Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2015” {ESOP 2015): The Board vide its resolution dated July 1,2015 approved ESOP 2015 for granting Emplayee Stock
Optians in the form of Equity Shares linked to the completion of a minimum period of continued employment to the eligible employees of the Company monitored by the Board of
Directors. The eligible employees, including directors, for the purpose of ESOP 2015 will be determined by the Board of Directors fram time to time except for certaln category of
persons as specifled in ESOP 2015, who will not be eliglble for ESOP 2015, The holders of the vested options are entitled to apply for ona equity share of the Company, In accordance

with the terms of the grant,
The Board of the Company vide resolution dated 23 March 2023 taak note of cancellation of all the outstanding stock options of the Company and terminated the ESOP 2015, Hence,

the amount appearing in the ESOP reserve to the tune of INR 23,02 Cr are transferred to retained earnings.
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Bewakaof Brands Private Limited
Notes to the financial statemeats for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in R Crares; unless otherwise stated)

"Bewakoof Brand Private Limited - Employee option scheme 2023" (ESOP 2023) : Employee option Plan was approved by shareholders of the Company vide their special resolution
passed at the Annual General Meeting held on September 27, 2023, wherein they have agreed to create, offer, issue and allot up to 5,879 (Five Thousand Eight Hundred and Sevenly-
Nine) employee stock options (“Options*) in the form of equity shares linked to the completlon of minimum period of continued employment to the eligible employees of the
Company monitored by the Board of Directors. The holders of the vested options are entitled to apply for the one equity share of the Company, in accordance with the terms of the

grant.

Employee Stock optlon pian 2015 (ESOP 2015)
The Company has no options outstanding pertaining to Employee Stock Option Plan 2015” (ESOP 2015) as at March 31, 2024 { As at March 32, 2023 : 4399 options outstanding with a

weighted average price of Rs. 1533.19). All the shares have been forfeited during previous year

Movements during the year
The fallowing are the number and welghted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and mavements in, share aplions during the year:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No, of optlons WAEP {Rs) No. of optlons WAEP [Rs)
- - 4,359.00 1,533.19

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year

Granted during the year . . .
Forfeited during the year . [4,299.00) (1,533.19)

Exercised during the year -
Outstanding at the end of the year - »
Exercisable at the end of the year - - =

Employee Stock option scheme 2023 (ESOP 2023}

Movements during the year
The loflawing are the number and weighted average exercine

ices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during the year:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of aptions WAEP (Rs) No. of aptlons WAEP (Rs)
Outstanding ot the beginning of the yoar . -
Granted during the year 1,284 10
Forfeited during the year . .
| Evercised during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year
tExe'rcleln al the end of the year

Share options outstanding at end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise prices:
Share option

Grant date Expiry date Exerclse price I1-Mar-2a I-Mar-23
September 27, 2023 QOctober 30, 2024 10.00 424
September 27, 2023 October 30, 2025 10.00 437
September 27, 2023 April 30, 2026 10.00 423

Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life _ld2vears| - ]

The weighled average fair value of the options granted during the year is Rs 87,810.86 (March 31, 2023 - Nil). The fair value at the grant date is determined independently using

binominal model,

The expense recognised far employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

I Employee stock option schame 2023 (ESOP 2023)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Expense arising from equity-settiee share-based payment transactions i56 .
Employee stock gEliun scheme 2015 IESOF 2015)
Year ended Year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions 17.08

The following table lists the inputs ta the model used for options:

Empl stock option scheme 2023 (ESCP 2023)

Partlculars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Valuation model used Blnamial model
Weighted average fair values at the measurement date 87,810.31-87,811.31
Dividend yield (%) 0% -
{Expected volatllity (%) 38.73% - 44.33% .
Risk-free interest rate (%) 7.13% - 7.41% -
Expacted life of the options {In years) 1.09-2.59 years
Exercise Price 10.00 -
Grant date September 27, 2023 U
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Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes to tha financlal statements for the year anded March 31, 2029
{All amounts in ® Crores; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE - 42
COMMITMENTS
Particulars aeat st
& March 33,2024 March 31,2023
(i) Differential Custom Duty under EPCG License 0.01
NOTE - 43
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Claims agalnst the Company not acknowledged as debts, in respect of:
{i) Income Tax 1155 0.01
{ii) Goads and Service Tax 0.19 -
{iil) Others 0.01 .

(o) Future cash flows relating to abave are determinable anly on the receipt of judgment / decision from

relevant forum / authorities.
{b) The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the abave contingent liabliities.
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Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts In X Crores; uniess otherwise stated)

NOTE- 44
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a) Names of related partles and descrlption of relatlonships:

Ultimate Holding Company
Aditya Birla Fashion & Retail Limited {wef February 15, 2023}

Holding Company
Aditya Birla Digltal Fashion Ventures Limited {wef February 15, 2023}

Subsidlary
Next Tree Products Private Limited

Companies with common control and with whom transactions have taken place
Nomisma Moblle Solutions Private Limited {upto February 14, 2023}

Purple Panda Fashions Private Limited (up to February 14,, 2023)

Awesomefab shopping Private Limited (Veirdo} (wef February 15, 2023)

Key management personnel (KMP) {irrespective of whether tr fon has taken place or not)
Directors

Prabhkirandeep Singh Whole time Director

Vikram Gupta {up to February 14, 2023} Director

Gaurav Sharma (up to February 14, 2023} Director

Prashanth Aluru (wef February 15, 2023} Nominee Director

Manish Singhai {February 15, 2023 - January 25, 2024) Nominee Director

Prashant Sharma (wef January 25, 2024 ) Nominee Director

Other KMP

Adlti Pai (up to September 30, 2023} Chief Financial Officer

Entit» in which KMP/relatives af KMP are interested and with wham transactions have taken place

Technalism Limited

Other Partles
Siddharth Munat {up to February 14, 2023} Promoter

b) Transactions with related parties

Entity in which relative of KMP is interested {Amandeep Singh, relative of Prabhkirandeep Singh)

Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to thase that prevall in arm'’s length transactions. Outstanding bafances at the year end are unsecured and interest free and

settlement occurs in cash

The followlng table provides Lhe total amount of transactlons that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Hidden Loan &

—

Ultimate Holding Holding
Company Company

Subsidlary

common control

Companles with

Entity in which

KMP/relatives of KMP

are Interested

Kmp

Other parties

Transactions duﬁns the year ended March 31, 2024
Sale of Gaods 132 N
Sale of Services. . -
Purchasa of stock-in-trade

Employes benelits expansss

A and sales i ¥
Reimburiement of expenses to

Equity share capital and instruments entirely equity in
nature [ including secutiries premium) - 79.39
Reimbursement of expenses from - 0.57

0.05

Balances outstanding as at March 31,2024
Trade receivabies
Refund Liabilities 0.50

0.50

Trade Mayable 0.05
Employee benelit payable®* . :

0.55
7.44
D08

0.12

620

018

0.28

0.20

0.20

# Trade receivable from related party from Nexttree Products Private Limited, India (Subsidiary} has been fully provided




Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in R Crores; unless otherwise slated}

Entity In which
Uitimate Helding Holding bsidiary Companles with KMP/relatives of KMP| KMP Other partles
C y Company common control N
are interested

Transactions during the year ended March 31, 2023

Sale of Goods - - 1.89 . "

Sale of Sarvices - . .40 . a -

Purchase of stock-in-lrade - B . 0,02 . -

Employer Benelit expense - - . . - 10.16 .
Intetest Expense . . - - 0.01 -
Commisslon E - 0.06 - . 011
Advertimant and sales promation expense . - - 0.15 .

Retmbursement of expenses lo - - - 0.11
Reimbursement of expenses fram - - 0.05 - =
Eauity share capital and instruments entirely cquity in 86.78

nature [ including secutiries premium) - N = = 3
Balances outstanding as at March 31, 2023

Trade recelvables . 4.96 L

Advance lo Employes i - . . . - 032

Trade Payable - . . 0.05 - 0.14
|Erpployee benofit payable®* - . ‘ Lo - 352 -

*Amount is below the rounding off criteria adopted by the company
**This aforesald amount does not include amount accured in respect of performance Incentive, gratuity and compensated absences, as the same are not determinable for each employee

separately. These are considered on payment basis

#Note : Pursuant to change in Control, the Company became a deemed public company w.e.l. February 15, 2023. Accordingly, the Company is required to pay managerlal remuneration to their
directors as per the limit defined in section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with schedule V of the companies Act, 2013, The excess managerial remuneration paid to Mr. Prabhkirandeep
Singh, a diractor in the Company, to the tune of INR 0,30 Cr, for the period from February 15, 2023 till March 31, 2023, is a sum recoverable from the said director within a period of two years
btained approval of bers by special resolution in the ensuing annual general meeting in regard to these payments.

The Company has

#iMote : The Shareholders of the Company vide their special resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on September 27, 2023 and EGM held on December 18, 2023 have accorded
their approval to the managerlal remuneration paid or payable, as the case may be, to Mr. Prabhkirandeep Singh, Whole-time director in the Campany, in accordance with the emplayment
agreement of the said director with the Company, for the financial year(s) 2022-23, 2023-24 and 2024-25, including the remuneration pald or payable in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits

in any such financial year.
Note : Mr Prabhkirandeep Singh and Mr. Siddharth Munot had issued personal guarantees to one bank and one NBFC in respect of term loans and working capital loan sanctioned by such
banks/NBFC. The same has now been released.
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Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in R Crares; unless othervise stated}

NOTE - 45
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: FAIR VALUE, RISK MANAGEMENT GBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

A. Accountling classification and fair values

The carrying value and fair value of flnanclal Instruments by categorles and hieraichy as at March 31, 2024 are as fallows:

Falr Value
FUTPL FvTOC! Amortised cost* T""",:;’:"'“' Level1 Level 2 Level 3

FInanclal Assets

Trade receivables . 15.49 1549 . . .
Cash and cash equivalents B = . * - a .
Bank balance other than cash and cash equlvalents . - 0.05 0.09 - .

Other financial assels - - 0.70 0.70 . .

Tota| - - 16.38 1628 - = :
Financlal Liabllities

Borrowings - - 3139 3139 “
Other financial liabilllles - 347 3,47 . - .
Trade payables - - 49.11 49.11 = - 2
Total s - 8397 83.97] = : 2
The carrying value and fair vaiue of financlal Inslruments by categorles and hierarchy as al March 31, 2023 are as fallaws:

Falr Value
FUTPL FUTOCL  Amortised cost®® T“"::li'e'v'"“ Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financlal Axserts

Inssstment in smatusl fundi 4.67 . . 467 467 = .
Trade recelvables . . 20,04 20.04 . . .
Cash and cash equivalents . 3437 3437 . .
Bank balance other than cash and cash 2quivalents B . 477 477 . - -
Other financlal assels . . 1as Ld5 = = :
Total 4,67 - 60.63 65.30 467 T |
Financial Liabllitles

Dorrcwings . 1.43 3441

Other financial liabilitles - 483 483 . - -
|frade payables N - - 3604 3604 - . -
Total - 75.30 i5.30 - = =
—iL

*Amount is below the rounding off criteria adapted by the company
**Carrylng value of financial instrumacnts measured at amortised cast equals to the falr value

Key Inputs for Level 1 Fair valuation technique
Quoted Invesiments: Valuation Is dane based market value of the Investments in mutual funds | e, fair value {Level 1)

B. Risk management abjectives and policles

The Company's principal financial liabilitics comprise of borrowings, lease obligation, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial lfabilities is to finance the Company’s operations, The
Company's principal financial assets Include securlly Jepasits, investments, trade and other receivables and cash and cash cquivalents that is derived directly from its operations.

of thesa risks The senior management ensures that tha

The Company's activities exposes it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senlor oversees the
Company’s financlal nisk aclivities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financials risks are identificd, measured and managed in accardance with Company's policies and risk

ohjectives. The Company reviews and agrees on pollcles for managing each of these risks which are summarlsed below:

a) Market risk

| risk comprises two types of rlsk: interest rate risk and currency

Market risk is the risk that the falr value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will luctuate because of changes in market prices. Marke
and The ity of the relevant profit and

nsk. The analysis excludes the impact of the movements In the market varlables on the carrying value of gratuily and other post
Iossitem is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risk., This is based on financial assets abd financial liabilitias he(d at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

1) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk Is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a linancial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates

Expasure to Interest rate risk

Harticulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Total Borrowings 3139 34.39

Barrowlngs bearing variable rate of interest 10.50 3219
33.45% 93 61%

% of borrowing bearing variable rate of Interest
Interest rate sensitlvity

A change of 50 bps in interest rates would have the following impact on profits/loss before tax

Impact on loss befare tav

Partlculars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.16 017

50 bps Increase would decrease profit/{loss) by
50 bps decrease would Increase profit/{loss) by 10.16) 10.17)|

—
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Bewakoof Brands Prlvate Limited
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in ® Crares; unless otherwlse stated)

i) Faralgn currency risk

Forelgn currency risk is the risk thal the fair value or fulure cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in forelgn exchange rates. The Company's exchange risk arises from its foreign currency
assets and liabilities. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rales arises on account of purchases from foreign countries. The Company has not laken any derivative instrument

during the year and there is na derivative instrument outstanding as at the year end.

The Compoany's exposure in fareign currency al the end of reporting pericd =

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Currency Particulars FC R FC ~ Rs
GBP Liability
Trade Payabies ' 020 * 013
Net expoture on forelgn curreney rlsk kd 0.20 M 0.13

*Amount is beloy the rounding off criteria adopted by the company

Impact on lais before ta

Sensitivity:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2033
GBP
Increases by 5% {0.01) (0.01)
001 0.01

Decreases by 5%
b} Credit risk
Credst nisk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligatians under a financial instruments or customer contract leading Lo a financial loss.

The Company is exposed to credil risk from its operating activities {primarily trade 1 eceivahles), security deposit and from ils investing actvities, including deposlits with banks Managemant has a credit policy

1n place and the exposure Lo credlt risk is monitored on an ungoing basls

Cash and cash equivalent, Investments and alher bank balances
Credil risk related to cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and investmeals is managed by accepting highly rated banks and financial instutions. Investments primarily indludes investnient in mutual

funds. Management does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counterparties

Other financlal assets measured at amortlzed cost
Other financial assels measured at amortized cost includes security deposits and other receivables. Credit risk relatad Lo assets are managed by manitaring the racoverabillty of such amounts continususly,

while at the same ime the mternal control system in place cnsures that amounts are within defined limits Further, since the other amaunts invohed are not significant, the expected credit loss on these

financialinstruments is capecled ta be msignilicant,

Trade recelvahies
Customer credit risk 15 managed by the Company subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and conlrol relating ta customer cradit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are

regularly monitared, To manage this, the company perodically assesses the financial reliabilily of custemers, 1aking into account the financial conditian, current ecanomic trends, and analysis of historical bad
debls and ageing of trade receivable. The Company creales allowance for ali trade receivables based on simplilied approach. The maximum e«posure (o credit risk al the reperting date is the carrying value of

each class of financial aswels, The Company does nol ho!d collaleral as security.

The following table summanses the change i the loss allowance measured using ECL

March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023

Opening balance 177 426
Allowance made during the year {net) 13.28 (2.49)
15.05 127

Closing balance {including ECL provision of Rs. 14,13 Cr {As at March 31, 2023 Rs. 0,30 Cr}

Expected credit loss %5

Ageing March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Not due 078% 0.00%
0to 90 days 238% 0.50%
91 to 130 days 247% 0.50%
181 to 270 days 3570% 13.18%
271 to 360 days 75.69% 63.53%
> 360 days 100 00% 100 004

Additionally, the Company has carricd out a speaific partywise assessment of the trade recaivables and created loss allowances of Rs. 0,92 Cr {As at March 31, 2023 : 1.47 Cr) based on such assessment over
and abave the expected credit loss

) Uguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company wlll encaunter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shartage of funds. The Company's {Inancing activities are managed centrally by maintaining an

adequate level of cash and cash equivalents to finance the Company's aperations. Typlcally the Company 2nsures that it has sufficlent cash on demand to meet expected short term operational expenses. The
Company manages its surplus funds centrally by placing them with reputable flnancial Institution with high credlt rating and no history of defauit

The table below summarises the maturlly profile of the Company's financlal liabilitles at the reporting date. The amounts are based on contractual undiscounted payments,

As at March 31, 2024
Partlculars Lessthan 1years| 1to5 years More than 5 Total
yoars
Borrowings 3156 B B 3156
Lease liabilities 142 025 . 167
Trade payables 49.11 - - 49.11
230 . . 3.30

Other financlal liabilllies fother than Interest)
Bs.40] o5 - 85.55]

Total

Asat March 31, 2023

Partlculars Less than 1years| 1taSyears | TMOFtHanS Total
Yeary
Borrowlngs 3452 003 - 3455
Lease liabilities 092 Q55 - 147
Trade payables 3604 . - 36,04
Other financlal liabilities {other than Interest 472 * = 472
7613 0.58) = 1877

Tatal

Tatal cash outllows for leases for the year ended March 31, 2024 Is Rs. 3,34 Cr (March 31, 2023 is Rs. 4.97 Cr {Includes payments for short lerm leases)




Bewakoof Brands Private Limited
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts in R Crores; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE - 46
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives, when managing capital are to
(1} Safeguard their ability to continue as going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefils for other stakeholders.

(ii) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In order ta malntain and adjust the capital structure, the palicy of the Company is to borrow funds through banks/ financial institutions supported by committed borrowing facilities to

meet anticipated funding requirements.
Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of following ratio:

The capltal structure is governed by pollcies approved by the Board of Directors, and Is manitored by various metrics. Funding requirements are reviewed periodically with any debt

Issuances
The following table summarises the capital of the Company (debts excludes lease labllities):
Asat As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net debt
Cash and cash equivalent . 34.37
Non current borrowings - -0.03
Current borrowings (including current maturitles of long term borrowing} -31.56 -34.52

Total barrowings (31.56) (0.17!

Equity 51.88 72.02
Total equity 51.88 72,02
Net Debt equity ratlo {0.61) -
“Amount is below the rounding off criteria adopted by the company
#This includes interest accrued but not due on borrowings.
NOTE - 47
RATIO DISCLOSURES
Asat Asat % change Reason for varlance exceeding 25% as
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 8 compared to the preceding year
Current ratio {times)' 086 1.10 -22%|NA
Variance is on account of higher Net Debt in
Debt equity ratio (times)’ 060 {0.07) -1012%|the current year as compared to previous
year
Variance is due to increase in loss during the
Debt service coverage ratio (times)’ 1197 048 2392% Lear €
Varlance is due to increase in loss during the
d increase in average equity
¢ 1,66] 0.42 -ag49;| Ve 2N
Return On Equity (%) (1.66) b employed in the current year due to issue of
i __|shares and premium paid on CCPS
Inventory turnover ]times]s 3.62 3.85 -8%|NA
Debtors turnover {times)® 9,06 923 -2%|NA
Variance is on account of increase in
Trade Payables turnover (times)’ 5.72 375 52%|purchases of Raw Materials, Stack In Trade
and other expenses
Vanance is on account of Increase in
d decrease in the average
. L 79, 1 2635 |revenue an
Net capital turnover (times) 7933 &4 % working capital as compared to the previous
vear
Variance is on account of increase in loss
. . 9 ¥ X 640%
Net profit margin (%) {0.68) {0.09} during the year
Variance is on account of increase in loss
10
. 0.03 3415% )
Return On Average Capltal Employed {%:) (1.17) (0.03) 0 during the year
Variance is on account of Increase In loss
Return On Investment (%)"* (0.64) {0.03) 2040% N
during the year

Ratios have been computed as follaws:

1. Current ratio = Total current Assets / Total current Llabllitles {excluding Lease Llabilities accounted as per Ind AS 116)

2. Debt equity ratio = Debt / Equity

Debt = Borrowings (excluding Lease Llabllities accounted as per Ind AS 116) - Cash and Bank Balance {includes fixed d its) - Liquid |

Equity = Equity share capltal+ Instruments entirely equity in nature + Other equity

3. Debt service coverage ratio = Earnings before interest™ and tax /Interest & Principal Repayments (excluding lease liabilities)

4, Return on equity ratio = Loss for the year/ Average of opening and closing Net Worth

S. Inventory turnover = Revenue from Operatlons / Average of opening and closing Inventorles

6. Debtors turnover = Revenue from Operations / Average of opening and closing Trade Recelvables

7.Trade payables turnover = Total Purchases { Raw malerial, packing material and stock-In-trade) / Average of opening and closing Trade Payables

8. Net capital turnover = Revenue from Operations / Average of opening and closing Working Capital

9. Net profit margin = Loss for the year / Revenue from Operations

10. Return on Average Capital Employed = Earnings before interest and tax / Capltal Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability
11. Return on Investment = Earnings before interest and lax / Average of opening and closing Total Assets

* Finance cost/ interest comprises of Interast expense on borrowings and excludes Interest expense on lease llabilities and interest charge on fair value of financial instruments.

—
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Bewakoof Brands Private Umited
Notes o the financlal statements for the year anded March 31, 2024
{All amounts in % Crores; unless otherwise stated}

NOTE - 48
CORE INVESTMENT COMPANIES
The Campany is not a Care tnvestment Company {'CIC') as defined in the regulations of Reserve Bank of India. There are 8 CIC's in the group.

NOTE - 49
ADDITIONAL AND OTHER REGULATORY DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE IN

{i) DETAILS OF BENAM) PROPERTY HELD
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) {formerly the Benami

Transactions (Prohibition} Acl, 1988 (45 of 1988}} and Rules made thereunder,

{11} COMPLIANCE WITH NUMBER OF LAYERS OF COMPANIES
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under Section 2{87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Restriction of number of layers) Rules, 2017.

(1) RELATIONSHIP WITH STRUCK OFF COMPANIES

The fullowng table summarises the transactions with stiuck off Cosnpanies:
Nature of transaction with | Balance outstanding as at | Balance ottstanding as | Relationshlp with the stuck off Companies,
Name of struck off Company
struck off Company March 31, 2024 at March 31, 2023 Ifany
Elite Enterprizes Private Limited _|Purchase of stack-In-trade {0.07] (O.ng Unrelated
Fashion Cottage Private Limited . | Purchase of stock-in-trad {0.02) (0.02) Unrelated
Gee Impex (Indla) Private Limited _ Purchase of siack-in-trade * ¥ Unrelated
Deblt tG5T = *
Quest Logistics Private Limited eblt note faload dgaliy Unreloted
[rechvery {2A Reco)

*Amount is below the rounding off criteria adopted by the company

{iv) BORROWINGS
The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose far which it was taken

{v} WILFUL DEFAULTER
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank ar financial instilution or government or any government authority.

{vi) COMPLIANCE WITH APPROVED SCHEME(S) OF ARRANGEMENTS
The Company has not entered into any scheme af arrangement which has an accounting impact on current financlal year

{vhi) UTILISATION OF BORROWED FUNDS AND SHARE PREMIUM
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies}, including fareign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary

shall:
a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitles identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b} pravide any guarantee, securlty or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
The Company has not recelved any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise)

that the Company shall:
a) directly or indirectly fend or invest in other persons ar entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiarles) or

b) provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

{vill) UNDISCLOSED INCOME
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

{Ix) DETAILS OF CRYPTO CURRENCY OR VIRTUAL CURRENCY
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current financlal year.

{x} VALUATION OF PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {INCLUDING RIGHT-QF-USE ASSETS) AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment {Including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the current financial year.

{xi} REGISTRATION OF CHARGES OR SATISFACTION WITH REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES
The Company had a charge with respect to barrowing, amounting to Nil (As at March 31, 2023 Rs. 5.00 Cr), satisfaction for which was pending to be filed with the ROC as at year end,

which was filed on April 25, 2024,

{xil) TITLE DEEDS OF IMMOVABLE PROPERTIES
Title deeds of all immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

{xlil) BORROWING SECURED AGAINST CURRENT ASSETS
The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of securily of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks ara In

agreerment with the books of accounts,

A/



Bewakeof Brands Private Limlted
Nates to the finandial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in & Crores; unless otherwise staled)

NOTE - 50
EXEMPTION FROM PREPARING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

asit meets all the

lidated Flnancial § “, the Ci has avalled the exemption from preparing the ¢ d financial

Pursuant to para 4 of Ind AS 110 "C
criteria mentioned there in which exempts the parent entity from pr ing ¢

d # 1

NOTE - 51

Identificatlon of Segments:

The chief operating decision maker (Managing Director) monitors the operating results of its Business segment separately for the purpose of making declsion about resource atiocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the fl ial , Operating
have been identified ari the basis of nature of products and other quantitatlve criterla specified in the Ind AS 108

(i) The Company operates in a single operating segment ie apparels and lifestyle accessorles. Accardingly, the Group operation is a single segment in terms of its products.

{ii) Entity wide disclasure

(a} Information about products and services - The Company's products falls under single product category i.e; apparels and lifestyle accessories
(b} The P in a single ical area i.e within India.
(c} There is no single customer which accounts for more than 10% of the total sales.

NOTE - 52
The previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever required to conflrm with current year classification

As per our report of even date

Far Price Waterhouse & Ca Chartered Accountants LLP
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